# Kaspersky Security Center

(version 13.0.0.11247)

**Preparative Procedures** 

Document version: 2.01

10.09.2021

## **Table of contents**

Table	e of c	ontents	2
1.	Abo	out this document	4
1.1		Terminology	4
1.2		References	4
1.3		Purpose of the document	4
2.	Red	uirements and prerequisites	4
2.1		Required hardware and software	4
2	2.1.1.	Administration Server	4
2	2.1.2.	Web Console	7
2	2.1.3	Administration Console	9
2	2.1.4	Network Agent	9
2.2		Secure environment	12
2	2.2.1.	Physical security	12
2	2.2.2	Trusted administration	12
2	2.2.3	Trusted platform	12
2	2.2.4	Time service	12
3.	Pre	-install procedures	12
3.1		OS setup	12
3.2		OS users password policy	12
3.3		Get and check an installation package	13
3.4		Install a database management system	13
4.	Inst	allation	13
4.1		Kaspersky Security Center installation	13
4.2		Web Console	22
4	.2.1.	Obtaining installation package	22
4	.2.2.	Web Console Setup installation	22
5.	Pos	t install setup	
5.1		Quick Start Wizard	28
5.2		Setting up roles	29
5.3		Putting into evaluated configuration	29
5	5.3.1.	Disabling mmc console ports (if MMC-based console is installed)	29
5	5.3.2.	Setting minimum TLS version	29
5.4		Setting the maximum number of events in the event repository	30
5.5		Rolling out to endpoint devices	
5	5.5.1.	Manual installation	
5	5.5.2.	Centralised rollout	31



5.5.3.	. Rollout by external means	31
5.6.	Checking KSC version installed	32

### **1. About this document**

### 1.1. Terminology

Terms and abbreviations used in this document are defined in [ST].

### 1.2. References

Reference	Document
[ST]	Kaspersky Security Center. Security Target. Version 2.01
[UGD]	Kaspersky Security Center. User Manual. Version 2.00

### **1.3.** Purpose of the document

This document describes necessary preparative procedures for putting **Kaspersky Security Center (version 13.0.0.11247)** (hereinafter KSC) into the evaluated secure state as required by [ST]. [ST] contains certain assumptions and requirements for the operational environment that have to be fulfilled.

Users that aim to use the evaluated configuration of KSC in a secure way are required to follow the preparative procedures described in this document during installation and initial setup of KSC.

In order to fine-tune KSC settings according to organization needs and specific conditions, users should refer to [UGD] as guidance.

### 2. Requirements and prerequisites

### 2.1. Required hardware and software

This section lists hardware and software requirements consistent with the evaluated configuration. Users are encouraged to consult [UGD] sections "*Deployment best practices*" and "*Sizing Guide*" to determine hardware configuration that would be required for their enterprise size and layout, and logical structure of KSC installations.

#### 2.1.1.Administration Server

#### Minimum hardware requirements:

- CPU with operating frequency of 1 GHz or higher. For a 64-bit operating system, the minimum CPU frequency is 1.4 GHz.
- RAM: 4 GB.
- Available disk space: 10 GB. When Vulnerability and Patch Management is used, at least 100 GB of free disk space must be available.

For deployment in cloud environments, the requirements for Administration Server and database server are the same as the requirements for physical Administration Server.

#### Software requirements:

- Microsoft® Data Access Components (MDAC) 2.8.
- Microsoft Windows® DAC 6.0.
- Microsoft Windows Installer 4.5.

- Operating system:
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 20H2 32-bit/64-bit
  - Microsoft Windows 10 20H1 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2019 LTSC 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2016 LTSB 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2015 LTSB 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809) 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809) 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809) 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Education RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809) 32-bit/64-bit
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Pro 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Education 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Home 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Education 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
  - Microsoft Windows 8.1 Pro 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 8.1 Enterprise 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 8 Pro 32-bit/64-bit
  - Microsoft Windows 8 Enterprise 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 7 Professional with Service Pack 1 and higher 32-bit/64-bit
  - o Microsoft Windows 7 Enterprise/Ultimate with Service Pack 1 and higher 32-bit/64-bit
  - Windows Server 2019 Standard 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2019 Core 64-bit
  - o Windows Server 2019 Datacenter 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Server Standard RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Server Datacenter RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Server Core RS3 (v1709) (Installation Option) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Standard (LTSB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Server Core (Installation Option) (LTSB) 64-bit
  - o Windows Server 2016 Datacenter (LTSB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2012 R2 Standard 64-bit
  - o Windows Server 2012 R2 Server Core 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2012 R2 Foundation 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2012 R2 Essentials 64-bit

- Windows Server 2012 R2 Datacenter 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2012 Standard 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Server Core 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Foundation 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Essentials 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2012 Datacenter 64-bit
- Windows Server 2008 R2 Standard with Service Pack 1 and higher 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2008 R2 with Service Pack 1 (all editions) 64-bit
- Windows Storage Server 2016 64-bit
- o Windows Storage Server 2012 R2 64-bit
- Windows Storage Server 2012 64-bit
- Database server (can be installed on a different device):
  - o Microsoft SQL Server 2012 Express 64-bit
  - o Microsoft SQL Server 2014 Express 64-bit
  - Microsoft SQL Server 2016 Express 64-bit
  - o Microsoft SQL Server 2017 Express 64-bit
  - Microsoft SQL Server 2019 Express 64-bit
  - Microsoft SQL Server 2014 (all editions) 64-bit
  - Microsoft SQL Server 2016 (all editions) 64-bit
  - Microsoft SQL Server 2017 (all editions) on Windows 64-bit
  - o Microsoft SQL Server 2017 (all editions) on Linux 64-bit
  - o Microsoft SQL Server 2019 (all editions) on Windows 64-bit (requires additional actions1)
  - o Microsoft SQL Server 2019 (all editions) on Linux 64-bit (requires additional actions2)
  - MySQL Standard Edition 5.7 32-bit/64-bit
  - MySQL Enterprise Edition 5.7 32-bit/64-bit
  - o All supported SQL Server editions in Amazon RDS and Microsoft Azure cloud platforms
  - MariaDB Server 10.3 32-bit/64-bit with InnoDB storage engine<sup>3</sup>

The following virtual platforms are supported:

- VMware vSphere 6.7
- VMware vSphere 7.1
- VMware Workstation 15 Pro
- VMware Workstation 16 Pro
- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2012 64-bit
- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2012 R2 64-bit

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> https://help.kaspersky.com/KSC/13/en-US/92403.htm

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> https://help.kaspersky.com/KSC/13/en-US/92403.htm

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> It is recommended to use MariaDB 10.3.22; if use an earlier version, the Perform Windows update task might take more than one day to work.

- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2016 64-bit
- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2019 64-bit
- Citrix XenServer 7.1 LTSR
- Citrix XenServer 8.x
- Parallels Desktop 16
- Oracle VM VirtualBox 6.x (Windows guest login only)

The following SIEM systems are supported:

- HP (Micro focus) ArcSight ESM 7.0
- HP (Micro focus) ArcSight ESM 6.8
- IBM QRadar 7.4

#### 2.1.2.Web Console

Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console (also referred to as Web Console) is an application that uses a web interface (Open API) provided by KSC for its management. Web Console was not evaluated as a part of KSC.

#### Minimum hardware requirements:

- CPU: 4 cores, operating frequency of 2.5 GHz
- RAM: 8 GB
- Available disk space: 40 GB

#### Software requirements:

- Operating system Microsoft Windows (64-bit versions only), one of the following:
  - Microsoft Windows 10 20H2
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 20H1
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2019 LTSC
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2016 LTSB
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2015 LTSB
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Pro RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809)
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809)
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809)
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Education RS5 (October 2018 Update, 1809)
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Pro 19H1
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations 19H1
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 19H1
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Education 19H1
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Home 19H2
  - o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro 19H2
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations 19H2
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 19H2
  - Microsoft Windows 10 Education 19H2
  - Microsoft Windows 8.1 Pro
  - Microsoft Windows 8.1 Enterprise
  - Windows Server 2019 Standard
  - Windows Server 2019 Core
  - Windows Server 2019 Datacenter

- Windows Server 2016 Server Standard RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB)
- Windows Server 2016 Server Datacenter RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB)
- Windows Server 2016 Server Core RS3 (v1709) (Installation Option) (LTSB/CBB)
- Windows Server 2016 Standard (LTSB)
- Windows Server 2016 Server Core (Installation Option) (LTSB)
- Windows Server 2016 Datacenter (LTSB)
- Windows Server 2012 R2 Standard
- Windows Server 2012 R2 Server Core
- Windows Server 2012 R2 Foundation
- Windows Server 2012 R2 Essentials
- o Windows Server 2012 R2 Datacenter
- o Windows Server 2012 Standard
- Windows Server 2012 Server Core
- o Windows Server 2012 Foundation
- Windows Server 2012 Essentials
- Windows Server 2012 Datacenter
- Windows Storage Server 2016
- Windows Storage Server 2012 R2
- Windows Storage Server 2012
- Linux (64-bit versions only):
  - Debian GNU/Linux 10.x (Buster)
  - Debian GNU/Linux 9.x (Stretch)
  - Ubuntu Server 20.04 LTS (Focal Fossa)
  - o Ubuntu Server 18.04 LTS (Bionic Beaver)
  - CentOS 8.x
  - o CentOS 7.x
  - Red Hat Enterprise Linux Server 8.x
  - Red Hat Enterprise Linux Server 7.x
  - SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 15 (all Service Packs)
  - SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 12 (all Service Packs)
  - Astra Linux Special, version 1.6
  - Astra Linux Special, version 1.5
  - Astra Linux Common Edition, version 2.12
  - o ALT 9.1
  - o ALT 8.3
  - o ALT SE 8
  - Node.js 14.16.1

#### Browser:

For a client, use of Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console only requires a browser, one of the following:

- Mozilla Firefox 68 Extended Support Release
- Mozilla Firefox 68 or later
- Google Chrome 75 or later
- Safari 12 on macOS
- Safari 13 on iOS

The hardware and software requirements for the device are identical to the requirements of the chosen browser that is used with Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console.



#### 2.1.3. Administration Console

#### Minimum hardware requirements:

- CPU: with operating frequency of 1 GHz or higher. For a 64-bit OS, the minimum CPU frequency is 1.4 GHz.
- RAM: 512 MB.
- Available disk space: 1 GB.

#### Software requirements:

- Microsoft Windows operating system (supported version of the operating system is determined by the requirements of Administration Server), **except** for the following operating systems:
  - Windows Server 2012 Server Core 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2012 R2 Server Core 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Server Core (Installation Option) (LTSB) 64-bit
  - o Windows Server 2016 Server Datacenter RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Server Standard RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2016 Server Core RS3 (v1709) (Installation Option) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
  - Windows Server 2019 Core 64-bit
- Microsoft Management Console 2.0
- Microsoft Windows Installer 4.5
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 10.0 running on:
  - Microsoft Windows Server 2008 R2 Service Pack 1
    - Microsoft Windows Server 2012
    - Microsoft Windows Server 2012 R2
    - Microsoft Windows 7 Service Pack 1
    - o Microsoft Windows 8
    - o Microsoft Windows 8.1
    - o Microsoft Windows 10
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 11.0 running on:
  - Microsoft Windows Server 2012 R2
  - Microsoft Windows Server 2012 R2 Service Pack 1
  - o Microsoft Windows Server 2016
  - o Microsoft Windows Server 2019
  - o Microsoft Windows 7 Service Pack 1
  - Microsoft Windows 8.1
  - o Microsoft Windows 10
- Microsoft Edge running on Microsoft Windows 10

#### 2.1.4. Network Agent

#### Minimum hardware requirements:

- CPU with operating frequency of 1 GHz or higher. For a 64-bit OS, the minimum CPU frequency is 1.4 GHz.
- RAM: 512 MB.
- Available disk space: 1 GB.

#### Software requirements:

• Operating system, one of the following:

- o Microsoft Windows Embedded POSReady 2009 with latest Service Pack 32-bit
- Microsoft Windows Embedded POSReady 7 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows Embedded Standard 7 with Service Pack 1 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows Embedded 8 Standard 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows Embedded 8.1 Industry Pro 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows Embedded 8.1 Industry Enterprise 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows Embedded 8.1 Industry Update 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 20H2 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 20H1 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2015 LTSB 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2016 LTSB 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 2019 LTSC 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Home RS5 (Oct 2018) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro RS5 (Oct 2018) 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations RS5 (Oct 2018) 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise RS5 (Oct 2018) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Education RS5 (Oct 2018) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Home RS4 (April 2018 Update, 17134) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro RS4 (April 2018 Update, 17134) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations RS4 (April 2018 Update, 17134) 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise RS4 (April 2018 Update, 17134) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Education RS4 (April 2018 Update, 17134) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Home RS3 (Fall Creators Update, v1709) 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Pro RS3 (Fall Creators Update, v1709) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations RS3 (Fall Creators Update, v1709) 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise RS3 (Fall Creators Update, v1709) 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Education RS3 (Fall Creators Update, v1709) 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Home 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Pro 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Education 19H1 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Home 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Pro 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Pro for Workstations 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 10 Enterprise 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 10 Education 19H2 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 8.1 Pro 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 8.1 Enterprise 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 8 Pro 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 8 Enterprise 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 7 Professional with Service Pack 1 and higher 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows 7 Enterprise/Ultimate with Service Pack 1 and higher 32-bit/64-bit
- Microsoft Windows 7 Home Basic/Premium with Service Pack 1 and higher 32-bit/64-bit
- o Microsoft Windows XP Professional for Embedded Systems 32-bit
- Microsoft Windows XP Professional Service Pack 3 and higher 32-bit
- Windows Small Business Server 2011 Essentials 64-bit
- o Windows Small Business Server 2011 Premium Add-on 64-bit
- Windows Small Business Server 2011 Standard 64-bit
- Windows MultiPoint Server 2011 Standard/Premium 64-bit
- Windows MultiPoint Server 2012 Standard/Premium 64-bit
- Windows Server 2008 R2 Standard Service Pack 1 and higher 64-bit
- Windows Server 2008 R2 Datacenter Service Pack 1 and higher 64-bit

- Windows Server 2008 R2 Enterprise Service Pack 1 and higher 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2008 R2 Foundation with Service Pack 1 and higher 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2008 R2 Service Pack 1 and higher Core Mode 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2008 R2 Service Pack 1 (all editions) 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Server Core 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Datacenter 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Essentials 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Foundation 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 Standard 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2012 R2 Server Core 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2012 R2 Datacenter 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 R2 Essentials 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2012 R2 Foundation 64-bit
- Windows Server 2012 R2 Standard 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2016 Datacenter (LTSB) 64-bit
- Windows Server 2016 Standard (LTSB) 64-bit
- Windows Server 2016 Server Core (Installation Option) (LTSB) 64-bit
- Windows Server 2016 Server Datacenter RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2016 Server Standard RS3 (v1709) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
- Windows Server 2016 Server Core RS3 (v1709) (Installation Option) (LTSB/CBB) 64-bit
- o Windows Server 2019 Standard 64-bit
- Windows Server 2019 Core 64-bit
- Windows Server 2019 Datacenter 64-bit
- Windows Storage Server 2016 64-bit
- Windows Storage Server 2012 64-bit
- Windows Storage Server 2012 R2 64-bit
- Debian GNU/Linux 10.x (Buster) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Debian GNU/Linux 9.x (Stretch) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Ubuntu Server 20.04 LTS (Focal Fossa) 32-bit/64-bit
- Ubuntu Server 18.04 LTS (Bionic Beaver) 32-bit/64-bit
- Ubuntu Desktop 20.04 LTS (Focal Fossa) 32-bit/64-bit
- o Ubuntu Desktop 18.04 LTS (Bionic Beaver) 32-bit/64-bit
- CentOS 8.x 64-bit
- CentOS 7.x 64-bit
- o Red Hat Enterprise Linux Server 8.x 64-bit
- Red Hat Enterprise Linux Server 7.x 64-bit
- SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 15 (all Service Packs) 64-bit
- o SUSE Linux Enterprise Desktop 15 (all Service Packs) 64-bit
- SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 12 (all Service Packs) 64-bit
- Astra Linux Special, version 1.6
- Astra Linux Special, version 1.5
- o Astra Linux Common Edition, version 2.12
- o ALT 9.1
- o ALT 8.3
- o ALT SE 8
- OS X 10.10 (Yosemite)
- OS X 10.11 (El Capitan)
- o macOS Sierra (10.12)
- o macOS High Sierra (10.13)
- macOS Mojave (10.14)
- o macOS Catalina (10.15)
- macOS Big Sur (11.x)
- The following virtualization platforms are supported:

- VMware Workstation 16 Pro
- VMware Workstation 15 Pro
- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2012 64-bit
- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2012 R2 64-bit
- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2016 64-bit
- Microsoft Hyper-V Server 2019 64-bit
- Citrix XenServer 7.1 LTSR
- Citrix XenServer 8.x
- VMware vSphere 7.1
- VMware vSphere 6.7

### 2.2. Secure environment

The following requirements have to be met for secure operation of KSC. When deploying and using KSC, its users should make sure those requirements are met.

#### 2.2.1.Physical security

KSC and RDBMS should be installed on the hardware that will prevent unauthorised physical access to their components and parts.

#### 2.2.2. Trusted administration

The personnel responsible for KSC administration and administration of underlying system and RDBMS should be trustworthy. They should follow this document and [UGD] while managing and using the system and perform all tasks correctly and with regards to the KSC security.

#### 2.2.3.Trusted platform

The KSC server device shall be located in a trusted environment that provides strong physical and logical access restrictions. Platform should be set up in a secure way to minimise risk of unauthorised access to KSC or RDBMS data.

Underlying platform and operating system should be trusted to correctly perform their functions.

#### 2.2.4. Time service

The platform should be configured to provide KSC with accurate and reliable timestamps.

### 3. Pre-install procedures

### 3.1. OS setup

An operating system and all prerequisites must be installed on a target device. Also make sure your device has no Network Agent installed.

### 3.2. OS users password policy

Operating system administrators and users that are supposed to have access to the TOE functionality are obliged to follow the certain password policy:

a) Characters allowed:

- A Z
- a-z
- 0-9
- @ # \$ % ^ & \* \_ ! + = [ ] { } | \ : ' , . ? / ` ~ " ( ) ;
- b) Characters disallowed:
  - Unicode characters
  - spaces
  - Cannot contain a dot character '.' immediately preceding the '@' symbol
- c) Password restrictions:
  - 8 characters minimum and 16 characters maximum
  - Must contain characters at least from any 3 of 4 groups mentioned in the section "Characters allowed".

### **3.3.** Get and check an installation package

Download an installation package from Kaspersky Lab support website <u>https://support.kaspersky.com/15020</u>.

Compare checksums of the TOE with ones listed in [ST] to make sure you are using the certified package.

You may use tools of your choice that support calculation of SHA256 hash or CertUtil tool included into MS Windows installation. In latter case you should use following command:

#### c:\>certutil -hashfile <path-to-file> sha256

Compare the calculated checksum to the one listed in [ST] and/or published on the Kaspersky Lab website.

### 3.4. Install a database management system

Before the Kaspersky Security Center installation, you must install a database management system (RDBMS) that will be used by Kaspersky Security Center. You can choose one from the supported versions of Microsoft SQL Server or MySQL.

For information about how to install the selected RDBMS, please refer to its documentation.

### 4. Installation

### 4.1. Kaspersky Security Center installation

This procedure describes how to install Kaspersky Security Center.

1. Under an account with administrative privileges, run the ksc\_13\_13.0.0.11247\_full\_en.exe executable file.

2. Allow the app to make changes to your device, if asked.



3. In the application selection window that opens, click Install Kaspersky Security Center 13.

kaspersky Kaspersky Security C	enter 1	l3 – ×
<u>Install Kaspersky Security</u> <u>Center 13</u>		<u>Install only Kaspersky Security</u> <u>Center 13 Administration Console</u> Install only Kaspersky Security
Install iOS MDM (Mobile Device Management) Serve	≝ <u>≞</u>	Center 13 Network Agent
Install Exchange Mobile Device Server		

4. Please wait until the app is extracted and prepared for installation. Then the Setup Wizard of Kaspersky Security Center 13 Administration Server starts. Beginning with the Welcome page, proceed through the



#### Wizard by clicking the **Next** button.

Kaspersky Security Center Ad	ministration Server			×
Security Center	Welcome to the Kaspers Administration Server Se	ky Security etup Wizard	Center	13
	The Setup Wizard will install Kas Administration Server on your d or click Cancel to exit the Setup	spersky Securit device. Click Ne Wizard.	y Center xt to con	13 tinue
	< Back Next	>	Cancel	

5. If Microsoft .NET Framework is not installed, install it. Otherwise click **Next**.

Kaspersky Sec	curity Center Administration Server - 🗌 🗙	
System red Please che Center 13	<b>quirements check</b> ck whether your device meets the system requirements of Kaspersky Security Administration Server.	
*	The required version of .NET Framework is already installed and activated. Click Next to continue or click Cancel to exit the Setup Wizard.	
	< Back Next > Cancel	



6. Read and accept the terms and conditions of the End User License Agreement and Privacy Policy.

Kaspersky Security Center Administration Server —	×
End User License Agreement and Privacy Policy Please carefully read the License Agreement and Privacy Policy.	
Kaspersky Security Center 13 END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT; AND Products and Services PRIVACY POLICY	~
Kaspersky Security Center 13 END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT ("LICENSE AGREEMENT")	
IMPORTANTIEGAL NOTICE TO ALL USERS: CAREFULLY READ THE	~
☐ I confirm that I have fully read, understand, and accept the terms and conditions of this End User License Agreement.	
I am aware and agree that my data will be handled and transmitted (including to third countries) as described in the <u>Privacy Policy</u> . I confirm that I have fully read and understand the <u>Privacy Policy</u> .	
© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab	
< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel	

7. Select the installation type. For the evaluated configuration keep the default **Standard** value.

aspersky Security Co	enter Administration Server		3 <del></del>		X
Installation type					
Select the installat	ion type that best suits your needs	5.			
Standard installa the database. N The Mobile Devic Custom installati extended set of	tion allows you to install the defaul o changes will be made to any sett e Management feature is unavailal on allows you to select additional o application installation settings.	It set of compone ings outside the c ole in standard ins omponents and m	nts and lescribed stallation nanage a	configure d scope. n mode. an	
• Standard					
O Custom					
	© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab			-	
	A Second S		the second se		

8. If you want to install Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console on the same device with Administration Server, select the Install Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console checkbox. Deselect the checkbox, if you want to install Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console later on the same device or separately on

another device (the latter is of the evaluated configuration). Be aware that MMC-based console cannot be used in the evaluated configuration.

Kaspersky Security Center Administration Server	—		$\times$
Kaspersky Security Center 13 Administration Consoles			
- Web-based console (recommended) A modern-looking application for most administrator's tasks, inclus	ding depla	oyment,	
configuration, and monitoring.     - MMC-based console     A fully functional desiton application that you can use together w	with the w	veb-based	
	inter ence v		
Install both Administration Consoles			
Web-based console		~	
© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab			
< Back Next >		Cancel	

9. Select the size of your network. For the evaluated configuration keep the default **Fewer than 100 networked devices** value.

Kaspersky Security Center Adm	inistration Serve	er	-		×
Network size					
Specify the network size.					
Select the approximate number information will be used to conf be able to modify these setting	of devices that igure Kaspersky s s later.	you intend to r Security Cente	nanage. This r 13 properly	, You will	
• Fewer than 100 networked	devices				
101 to 1 000 networked dev	vices				
1 001 to 5 000 networked d	evices				
O More than 5 000 networked	devices				
- O 2	2021 AO Kaspers	ky Lab			
	< Back	Nex	(t >	Cancel	



10. Select the type of database server that you installed earlier.

Kaspersky Security Center Administration Server - 🗌 🗙
Database server
Select the DBMS type.
Select the type of DBMS to which you want to connect Administration Server. A database will be created for the selected DBMS during later steps of the application installation.
O Microsoft SQL Server (SQL Server Express)
MySQL
© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab
< Back Next > Cancel

11. Specify the connection parameters for the database server that you have installed earlier.

Connection settings						
Specify the Microsoft SQL S	Server settin	ıgs.				
<ol> <li>Make sure that the rel You can download Mic another supported ve Microsoft SOL Server i</li> </ol>	levant versio rosoft SQL S rsion from th are available	on of Microsoft Si Gerver 2014 Expr Microsoft webs	QL Server is in: ess SP2 (recon <u>site</u> . Other ver	stalled. nmende sions of	d) or F	
2) Specify the Microsoft	SQL Server	settings:		1 .	2	
2) Specify the Microsoft SQL Server instance nar Database name:	SQL Server : me:	settings:		]	Browse	
2) Specify the Microsoft SQL Server instance nar Database name:	SQL Server : me:	settings:           KAV		]	Browse	

Kaspersky Security Center	Administration Server	-	- 🗆	×
Connection settings	1.201 - 1		10 14	
Specify the MySQL Serve	er settings.			
Select the device that he and the database name.	as MySQL Server installed an	d specify the server	port number	
SQL Server instance n	iame:	localhost		1
Port:		3306		]
Database name:		KAV		
Kaspersky Security Center	© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab     	Next >	Cancel	×
Select MySQL Server Au Select MySQL Server Au confirm the password.	thentication. thentication; you are prompt	ted to enter the acco	ount and	
Account:	root			
Password:	•••••			
Confirm password:	••••••			
	© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab	Next >	Cancel	]

12. Specify the authentication parameters for the database server that you have installed earlier.

If the Administration Server account does not have access to the database server, which may occur when the database is stored on the device outside the domain or when the Administration Server is installed under a LocalSystem account, you should use SQL Server authentication mode.



SQL Server Auther Choose the authenti	ntication mo	de			
Choose the authenti Server. If you select and confirm the pass	cation mode th SQL Server Au word.	at you want to u ithentication, yo	use for connecti ou are prompted	on to Micros I to enter th	soft SQL ne account
Microsoft Window	s Authenticatio	on mode			
O SQL Server Authority	entication mode				
Account:					
Password:					
Confirm password					

#### 13. Click Install to start the installation.

Kaspersky Security Ce	nter Administration Server	-		×
Ready to install K	aspersky Security Center 13 A	dministration	Server	
Click Install to s installation sett	tart installation. Click Back to review or ings. Click Cancel to exit the Wizard.	modify any of you	ur	
_	© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab			
	< Back	Install	Cancel	



14. Please wait while the app is installing.

Please wait for the Kaspersky Security Center 13 complete.	Administration Server ir	nstallation to
Application name	Application type	Operation
✓ Microsoft Windows Installer 4.5	Prerequisite	Installation
♦ Kaspersky Security Center Administratio	Main	Installation
Exchange Mobile Device Server	Extension	Installation
iOS Mobile Device Management plug-in	Extension	Installation
Kaspersky Security Center Web Console	Extension	Installation

15. After the installation successfully completes, choose whether or not you want to start Administration Console right after you close the Wizard. You can open Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console only if it is already installed. You cannot open Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console if you did not install it during the installation of Kaspersky Security Center or if you have installed it separately on a different device.

Kaspersky Security Center	The Kaspersky Security Center 13 Administration Server Setup Wizard has finished
	Kaspersky Security Center 13 Administration Server has been successfully installed.
· Jan Change	Click Finish to dose the Setup Wizard.
	Start Kaspersky Security Center Web Console

If you choose to open Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console, the login screen will open. Then you will be able to perform the initial configuration of the Administration Server by using the Quick Start Wizard (refer to the *Quick Start Wizard (Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console)* section of [UGD] for further instructions).

### 4.2. Web Console

Web Console uses a web-based user interface for interaction with KSC (Open API). Web Console has not been a part of evaluation of KSC, it is to facilitate the usage of web interface only.

#### 4.2.1. Obtaining installation package

In order to obtain the Web Console installer, you may use **Extract installation packages** option of the KSC installer, select **Kaspersky Security Center 13 Administration Server** to extract.



Find the Web Console installer in Server\Packages\WebConsole\ directory of extracted package. The certified TOE package contains installer of Web Console version 13.0.10286. Please note that distribution page (see section 3.3) may contain a newer version of Web Console. It is recommended to use the latest available version of Web Console for better security.

#### 4.2.2. Web Console Setup installation

This procedure describes how to install Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console.

- Make sure Node.js 14.16.1 is installed and system environment variable NODEJS\_PATH is added to the OS.
- 2. Under an account with administrative privileges, run the KSCWebConsoleInstaller.13.0.10286.exe executable file. Note that numbers in *bold italic* may be different for other versions of Web Console.

- 3. Allow the app to make changes to your device, if asked.
- 4. Select a language.
- 5. Setup Wizard starts. Click Next.

Kaspersky Security Center 13 V	Veb Console	×
kaspersky	Welcome to the Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console Setup Wizard	
	The Setup Wizard will install Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console on your device. Click Next to continue or click Cancel to exit the Setup Wizard.	
	< Back Next > Cancel	

6. Read and accept the terms and conditions of License Agreement.

Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console	×
License Agreement Please carefully read the License Agreement.	tit
Please read the End User License Agreement. You must accept the terms and conditions of the EULA to install the application.	2
Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console, iOS MDM Server, Microsoft Exchange Mobile Devices Server, Administration Console, Kaspersky Security Center 13 Network Agent for Linux, Kaspersky Security Center 13 Network Agent for Mac KASPERSKY LAB END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT	^
BY CLICKING THE ACCEPT BUTTON IN THE LICENSE AGREEMENT WINDOW OR BY USING THE SOFTWARE YOU CONSENT TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. SUCH ACTION IS A SYMBOL OF	~
$\ensuremath{\boxtimes}$ I confirm that I have fully read, understand, and accept the terms and conditions of this Er User License Agreement	nd
< Back Next > Canc	el

7. Specify a destination folder.



8. Specify the connection settings. This is the IP address and port to connect to Web Console via browser. By default, it is 127.0.0.1:8080.

Kaspersky Security Cent	ter 13 Web Console	×
Kaspersky Security Specify the Kaspe	y Center 13 Web Console connection settings ersky Security Center 13 Web Console connection settings.	<b>III</b>
Address	127.0.0.1	
Port	8080 Test	
Enable logging of F	Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console activities	
		Capital
	< DACK NEXT >	Cancel

9. Specify Node.js account settings if needed. You can use default or custom accounts.

Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console	×			
Account settings Specify the Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console account settings.				
A Node.js account and update service account are required for starting and updating Kas Security Center 13 Web Console. You can use the default accounts or specify custom one	persky es.			
Use default accounts				
○ Specify custom accounts				
< Back Next >	Cancel			
Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console	×			
Account settings Specify the Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console account settings.	THE			
A Node.js account and update service account are required. The local user account must login in the ". \Administrator" format (account with administrator rights).	use a			
Node.js account				
Login				
Password				
Update service account				
Password				
<back next=""></back>	Cancel			

10. Select the way to specify the certificate of trust. You can either generate a new one or choose an existing

	e certificate.	11H
<ul> <li>Generate new certificate</li> <li>Make sure the below don</li> </ul>	nain is trusted.	
Domain WIN-M	IEHVTC5JPGB	
O Choose existing certificat	te	
CRT certificate file	C:\Program Files\Kaspersky Lab\Kaspersky Secur	Browse
KEY certificate file	C:\Program Files\Kaspersky Lab\Kaspersky Secur	Browse

11. If you have chosen to generate a new certificate, you have to specify the settings of trusted Administration

Server. Select one from the list or add a new one.

persky Security	Center 13 We	b Console		×
Trusted Admir Specify the s	iistration Ser settings of trus	r <b>vers</b> sted Administr	ation Servers.	
You must create Web Console will Console will only Wizard in Upgrad	a list of trusted be allowed to connect to the le mode to edit dministration Se	d Administratii connect. Afte Administratio the list of Ad	on Servers to which Kaspersh r installation, Kaspersky Sec n Servers listed below. You ( ministration Servers after ins	ky Security Center 13 urity Center 13 Web can start the Setup stallation.
Name	Address	Port	Certificate	Add
WIN-NEHVT	localhost	13299	C:\ProgramData\Ka	Delete
				Edit
				Edit

12. If Web Console is meant to be installed on the same device with Administration Server, IP address can have 'localhost' value. Otherwise specify the correct IP address and port. By default, Administration Server's certificate is located in C:\ProgramData\KasperskyLab\adminkit\1093\cert folder on the Administration Server device.



#### 13. Click Install.



14. When installation is complete, you may use a web browser to open the Web Console user interface.

💼 Kaspersky Security Center Web 🖓	× + •	- 🗆 X
$\leftarrow \rightarrow \ \mathbf{C}$ A Not secure	127.0.0.1:8080/login	२ 🛧 🔒 :
	Kaspersky®   Security Center   User name Internal user or domain user  Password  ******  Advanced settings Sign in  Domain authentication  Domain authentication	⊕ English~
© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab Version: 13.0.10286		kaspersky

Be aware that the version shown at the bottom of login page relates to the version of Web Console, not KSC.

## 5. Post install setup

### 5.1. Quick Start Wizard

After installation is completed and Web Console is launched, the administrator should log in using credentials of a user with administrative privileges on a machine with Administration Server. Refer to "Logging in to Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console and logging out" section of [UGD], if needed.

After first logging in a tutorial window will appear.



Select **New Administration Server** if you'd like to get acquainted with the interface. Tutorial mode will start. Go through it and after that Quick Start Wizard will launch.





It will allow for initial setup of important settings of KSC and create initial set of tasks and data for your installation. Refer to the [UGD] section *"Quick Start Wizard (Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console)"* for additional information, if needed.

Please note that you will be asked for activation key or activation code on one step of the wizard. It is safe to choose "Add license key later" option and continue setup.

### 5.2. Setting up roles

It is important to set up correct user access rights and policies immediately after the installation.

By default, OS administrator users also have KSC's Main Administrator role privileges. You can setup separate users for this role, if needed. You may also want to add other users for less privileged roles. Refer to "Users and user roles" section of [UGD] for details.

### 5.3. Putting into evaluated configuration

#### 5.3.1. Disabling mmc console ports (if MMC-based console is installed)

- Open the system registry of the client device that has Administration Server installed (for example, locally, using the regedit command in the Start > Run menu).
- 2. Go to the following hive:
  - a. For a 64-bit system:

 $\label{eq:hkey_local_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Wow6432Node\KasperskyLab\Components\34\1093\1.0.0.\ServerFlags$ 

b. For a 32-bit system:

HKEY\_LOCAL\_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\KasperskyLab\Components\34\1093\1.0.0.0\ServerFlags

- 3. Create a DWORD key with the KLSRV\_FLAG\_PROHIBIT\_GUI\_PORT name.
- 4. Set the key value:1
- 5. Restart Administration Server service
  - a. net stop kladminserver
  - b. net start kladminserver

#### 5.3.2. Setting minimum TLS version

- 1. Open the system registry of the client device that has Administration Server installed (for example, locally, using the regedit command in the Start > Run menu).
- 2. Go to the following hive:
  - a. For a 64-bit system:

HKEY\_LOCAL\_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Wow6432Node\KasperskyLab\Components\34\.core\.independent \

- b. For a 32-bit system:
- HKEY\_LOCAL\_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\KasperskyLab\Components\34\.core\.independent\
- 3. Create hive Transport.
- 4. Create a DWORD key with the SrvUseStrictSslSettings name.
- 5. Set the key value:3



- 1

6. Restart Administration Server service.

### 5.4. Setting the maximum number of events in the event repository

It is advised to set threshold and RBDMS size with regard to the number of managed endpoint devices, expected approximate number of received events and number of specialists who will be reviewing audit records.

To set limit of events refer to "Setting the maximum number of events in the event repository" section of [UGD].

### 5.5. Rolling out to endpoint devices

#### 5.5.1. Manual installation

- 1. Run the setup file of the endpoint machine.
- 2. Choose "Install only Kaspersky Security Center 13 Network Agent".

kaspersky Kaspersky Security Center 13 – ×	
Install Kaspersky Security Center 13	Install only Kaspersky Security Center 13 Administration Console
	Center 13 Network Agent
Install iOS MDM (Mobile Device Management) Server	Extract installation packages
Install Exchange Mobile Device Server	

- 3. This will initiate the installation wizard. You will be asked to accept EULA and choose installation folder.
- 4. Manually fill in details for communication server consistent with your installation of KSC Administration Server.
- 5. Provide proxy details, if needed.
- 6. Choose "Do not use connection gateway".
- 7. Choose how encryption certificate will be obtained. For better security it is recommended to provide it manually.
- 8. Define tags for managed machine (optionally), which may be used later for grouping managed endpoints in KSC interface.
- 9. Specify advanced settings. Enable Network Agent service protection. Enable options for virtual compatibility, if needed.
- 10. Choose if you want to start Network Agent application during installation or not.

- 11. Click **Install** to start the installation.
- 12. Complete installation wizard.

#### 5.5.2.Centralised rollout

- 1. Login to Web Console.
- 2. Go to "Discovery & Deployment" > "Deployment & Assignment" > "Installation Packages".
- 3. Select "Kaspersky Security Center 13 Network Agent (13.0.0.11247)" package.
- 4. Press "Deploy" button.
- 5. Select the deployment method for the selected installation package: Using the remote installation task.
- Choose devices where you want to deploy Network Agent component. Refer to "Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console > Discovering networked devices" section of [UGD] to conduct initial discovery of devices via network polling.
- 7. You should choose means by which deployment will be conducted. Refer to "Kaspersky Security Center 13 Web Console > Protection Deployment Wizard" section of [UGD] for additional information regarding possible options on this and following steps. For initial installation you will have to use "Using operating system resources through Administration Server" option.
- 8. You choose restart process options on the next screen.
- 9. Select device assignment options.
- 10. You should provide wizard with the account with Administrator privileges for manage devices you are planning to deploy on.
- 11. Finish and run the task after the wizard.
- 12. Depending on the settings you made on Step 9 target machine will be listed in Discovery & deployment" -> "Unassigned devices" or "Devices" -> "Managed devices"
- 13. Refer to [UGD] for troubleshooting of those steps, if needed.
- 14. Clicking on the device name will open an Endpoint management window. Installed Network Agent and other managed AV products will be listed in Applications tab together with its versions.
- 15. For multiple Network Agent installations you should use Report on protection deployment from "Monitoring & Reporting > Reports" menu.

#### 5.5.3. Rollout by external means

If you want to install Network Agent on a local device in non-interactive mode, execute the following command on the device:

#### msiexec /i "Kaspersky Network Agent.msi" /qn <setup\_parameters>

where setup\_parameters is a list of parameters and their respective values, separated by a space (PROP1=PROP1VAL PROP2=PROP2VAL).

The names and possible values for parameters that can be used when installing Network Agent in non-interactive mode are listed in the "Network Agent installation parameters" section of [UDG].

### 5.6. Checking KSC version installed

To check Administration Server and Network Agents versions installed do the following.

- 1. Open Monitoring & Reporting menu.
- 2. Go to **Reports** tab.
- 3. Select **Report on Kaspersky software versions** in Deployment section.
- 4. Report will show aggregated information about software versions.
- 5. Go to Details tab to view the list of devices and versions for each of KSC components ("Version number" column).
- Make sure Kaspersky Security Center 13 Administration Server version and Kaspersky Security Center 13 Network Agents versions are all 13.0.0.11247. This verifies that the correct versions of KSC components are installed, working and having successfully established connection between each other.

## kaspersky

www.kaspersky.com/ www.securelist.com

© 2021 AO Kaspersky Lab. All rights reserved. Registered trademarks and service marks are the property of their respective owners